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4
Minutes of interrogation of Oshima
Excerpts

Tre City of Tokyo. April 22, 1946

I, Col. S. I. Rosenblit, Assistant Prosecutor from the
USSR in tre Internetional Eiiitary Tribunal for tre Far East
witk the Perticipaticn of Mejor Pastkovsky acting as interpreter
interrogated tre defendant who testified:

{ S Surnemei first name: Oshima Viroshri
d

2e Post re before arrcst: Jepanese Ambassador in
Berlin
3. Perty membersrip: I was no member of political
varties,

4, Domicile: Tokyo, Sugamo ovrison,

L certificate of the interpreter for being duly warned
of the responsibility for felse trenslation 1s attectred to
tre minutes of interrogation.

Tre intcrrogation is conducted in Jepenese,

Question: Wrat was tre basic aim of Germany and Japan whren
they concluded tre enti~Comintern Pesct?

tnswer: ITre Basic .aim of Germany eand Japen wren threy
concluded tre anti-Comintern Pact was to arrest
thc growtl? of communism,

Question: opecifically ageinst wkat countries was this Pact
dirccted?

Lnswer: Wrcn tris pect was concluded Russia was meent in
the first plecc. Marcover thc Pect provided for
the prevention of the spread of communist influcncc
in other countries es well, ‘

Question: Usuelly such Pacts ere concluded not egainst ideezs,
but rgeinst & definite country. Are we correct
if we sey that trc cnti-Comintcrn Pcet wes dirccted
egeinst tre Soviet Union?
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Lnsvicrs Trc enti-Comintern Peet os o whole was not dirceted .
spccifically ageinst Russia, It was directcd |
cgeinst communism in gcnerel, Fowever it followed
from thc Pect trat in cesc of Russo-Germen war
Jepen should not =zid Russia, and 21so tret Germany

should not =2id Russis in case of o Fusso-~Jepenesc
wvar 2 "

-------—-—--—-—-----—_—--—-— -—--—

Question: Dcseribe the ristory of ncgotietions carricd on in
12938-1930 concerning thce conelusion of o militery
aliieznce between Jepan, Germany and Itely,

Ansvier: approximately in June 1938 I reccived from tre
epencsc Gencral Steff thre documcnts whick sect before
me & task of probing in Germany the possibility
of concluding a military zlliance with Jepen in
virtuc of w-ieh Gormany would be under obligation
to cnter into tre war with the Sovict Union in casc
the letter atteclked Jopen end viec versr thet Jopen
would be under obligztion to enter into tre wer withk
tre Soviet Unilon if tre lattcr attacked Gcrmeny.
In trat timec I wes 2 military sttache, 4t the
beginning of July 1938 I visited Ribbentrop for the
purposc of probing in a privete meanncr wrethber
Germany red any sucr intcntions, I tolg Ribbentrop *
that I bed an idce of coneluding e consultetive Poct
bctween Japen and Germeny, i.c, & Pact in virtuc of
wrich in casc of conflict wity Russic, the perty
which became subjcet to atteck should consult the
otrer perty conccrning tre forms of aid the latter
D~Tty sbhould rcndcr to tFre party w“ictl becamc
subject to atteck., Just st tret time Eibbentrop
wes leaving os Ye Yed Fis summer vacation, Fc tolgd
me tret if o militery ellience wes to be concluded
1t srould be a complete but not = relfwey 2lliencc,
Thc obligation to Yolg consultetions is e Felfwey
obligetion 2nd Fitler weas rgainst such bPalfwey Poets
and trercfore we could telk only zbout o connlete
dcefensive allisnec in virtuc of wricr the contracting

I partics srould without reservetions entcr into thre
& war witr the edversery wriek attzcked one of treo
B contrecting pertics,

sceondly Ribbentrop told me that Gerreny would like

\ to bhave o militery alliencc directed not only ageinst
AN lussia but zlso agelinst thc other countries wrickh

0 r.1ght attack Germeny and Japan, namely tmerice,

7 Frence, Englend, ctes I told Fim thot trc cxtension

of that Pact to otrer countrics, besides Russie, woul
dcpend on tre decgrec of rcedincss of our amy and
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nevy for trc war sgeinst trose states, I told rim
- tat suetr an cxtcecnsion of the Pesct would be very
* difficull for Jepcne To tris LRibbentrop replied
trat Ccermeny would rot ask us to do the impossible,
end trat @ll tre perticulars of the behevior of the
concrcecting percics in case of such a conflict could
) bc discussed ofter tre conclusion of tre Pecte o o o
I received a tclegrem confirming that major-gcnerel
Kasarere forwarded my messeage to ttve leceoding military
officcrs, All of trem concurred in tre 1ldea of -
conclirding sucr a fect and revorted to the councill
of I'iv~2 niitisters wrich consisted trhen of Prime-
Minisvzr Keonoje, Fercign Minister Ugekl, Wer Minlstel
tageki, Einlster cf tre Navy Yonal and Minister
of Finence I%cde, Thre Councill of fivc ministers
also epproved of trc idez of conzluding svch 2
Pecty, &nd I reccived a tclegram Irom vbhe CGencral
Steff offering me to continus the ncgotictions
conccrning the conclusion oi~the Pect, bul beering
in mind tret, trat the miiitary allience strould be ,
neiniy direc%cd against Fussle aend all otkcr countri:
whricr Germany bed in view zhould be mentioned in
the Fcet es minor objecctives.

Thrrougr Ito wc rcecived sn instruction from our
coveinment. Tre Besic ldce of tret instruction wes
s foliows: '"Russia sYould be the uain objective
mentioned in the trcety, £l1 ot*er countries srould
bc ninor objcctives, and thc cntry of Jepen into

the wer zgeinst otler countrics could teke plece
only if throse countrics were infectecd with communism.
e ¢« o o Trc divcrgency of vicws hctween Jepen

and Germany led to furt er negotiations morking

time, and precticclly the Poet was not eoneluded

in 1639, Thris continued till tre conclusion by
Gecrmeny -of 2 Peet of non-sggression with thre Sovict
Union on August 23, 1939 as =& result of which furthre:
negotlations conecerning tre conclusion of a militery
alliencc betwecn Gernany, Jrpen and Itely were dis-
continmucds &+ o' s 2%

Qucstion: Fow did you inform your Govcrmment zs to thre coursc ;
of thc German-Soviet war?

inswer: Approximetely et tre end of July or at tre beginning »
of August 1941 I lcerned about tre slowing up of tre :
pecc of tre advence of tre Germen ermy. Tre advence M
was not procceding according to plan, MNoscow and ‘A
Leningrad werc not tcken according to tre German }%

]
-

plan, I asked informetion from Kibbentrop on ttrat
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subject, Ribbentrop invited Keitel to explein the
metter. Keitel told

me that tre slowing up of trc
advence of the Germ

&Nl army was ceused by tre
CXcessive lengtr of communiceatio

ns and rear units
legging bebind, z2nd that that wa

s the rcason wry
the pacec of tre advance of the German army was

epproximatcly threce wecks berind plan,

— — — — — — — — — - — — - — — — = — e — = — S — p— — L — - —_— —
L

«wuestion: Do you know Nahara,

Prcss-agent of thre Japencse
Embassy in Bcrlin?

Ansyger: Yes, I do. Fc worked 25 Intcrprete

T in our Embassy.
His fatrer wasg Ja

benese, bis mother German he
rceeived German cducetion,

was connected with the
Embassy and was latcly used

for radio interception
work., FHec worked with us unofficially,

Interrogated: o1 Rosenblitt,

Assistant Prosccutor from the USSR

Internationel Militery Tribunsl
For the Far Last,

Interpreter: Major Pcshkovsky.

Secretary-
Stenogreprer: Krjizcvskaya,

Interrogation began :
Interrogation was interrupted: 1 .
Interrogation continued ¢ <
Interrogation was over S |

O
<o
L
s

O

CERTIFICLTE OF TRANSLLTION OF EXCERPTS OF TFE LBOVE DOCUNENT :
______ﬁ________,____________m_h_________“_______._m_________“

: e A T Kunin, bercby certify that I am thoroughrly con-
vcrsané with tbc Eussian

and English langueges: and the above
1s 2 correct end true trenslation of thc indicateqd €Xccrpts of
the 2bove Document,

Signeture: o4, Kunin
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:Hinutes of interrogation of Oshima
Excerpts

o I Ay O R PR T

Tre City of Tokyo, April 22, 1946

-

I, Col. S, I. Rosenblit, Assistant Prosecutor from thre
i USSR in tre Internetional Miiitary Tribunal for tre Far East

4 : with the Participaticn of Major Pastkovsky acting as interpreter
b interrogated tve defendant wh o testified:

l. OSurneme, first name: Oshima Viroshi
24 Post Peid before arrest: Jepanese Ambessador in
Berlin
2. Perty membership: I was no member of political
varties,

4, Domicile: Tokyo, Sugamo orison,

L certificate of the interpreter for being duiy warned
of the responsibility for felse trensletion is attecred to
the minutes of interrogation.

Tre interrogation is conducted in Japenese.

- @ s - e - @ e N O Oaa = @ - @aas B e s s e B  wm - e, == e S Y ae e e -_ .

Question: Wrat was tre baSic &im of Germeny and Japan wren
trey concluded tre enti-Comintern Psct?

ANSWET: Tre Basic aim of Germany end Jepan wren threy
concluded tre anti-Comintern Peact was to arrest
the growtd of communism.

Question: Specifically ageinst what countriecs was thris Pact
directed?

finswer: Wren tris pact was coneluded Russiz was meent in
the first plece, Morcover thrc Pact provided for
the prevention of the spread of communist influcncc
in other countrics es well.

Question: Usuelly such Pacts zre concluded not sgeinst ldees,
but r#geinst 2 definitc country. Arc we correct
if wc sey that trc anti-Comintcrn Pret wes dirceted
egeinst tre Soviet Union?
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Lnsvicr: Trc enti-Comintern Pect as 2 w>ole was not dircected
- specifically agsinst Russia, It was direcected
cgeinst communism in gcneral, Fowever it followed
from thc Peet trat in casc of Kusso~Germen wer
Jepen stould not aid Hussia, and 2lso tret Germany
should not 21id Russia in casc of o Russo-Jeapenesc
war,"

—--l—-ﬂ—h_-—nn----h---_-----‘ h-—-——

Question: Dcseribe thre Fristory of ncgotiations carried on in
1938-1939 concerning the conclusion of e militery
alliznee betwecn Jepen, Germany and Itely,

insvicr: Lpproximately in June 1938 I reccived from tre

would be under obligafion to enter into tre wer with

In trat timc I waes 2 military attache, Lt the
beginning of July 1938 I visiteg Ribbcntrop for the
purposc of probing in = private menncy wrether
Germany brad any suck intcntions, I told Ribbentrop
that I bad on idce of concluding e consultative Poet
bctween Japen and Germeny, i.c. a Pact in virtue of
~wrich in casc of conflict withk Eussia, the perty
which beceame subjcet to atteek should consult the
otrer perty concerning tre forms of 2id the letter
P~Tty sbould rcndcr to tre perty wriel becamc
subject to atteck, Just at that time Hibbentrop
vwes leeving os be Fog Fis summer vecation, PFc tolgd

The obligation to Yold consultotions 1s 2 relfwey
obligation eng Fitler was cgainst suckh ralfway Paets
and trercfore we could trlk only sbout e corplete
defensive alliancc in virtue of wrieb the contracting
partics sroulgd without reservetions enter into the
war witlr thwe adversary wrick attacked one of thre
contracting perties,

Rl e

| Sceondly Ribbentrop told me trat Germany would 1ike
.{ to have a militery alliesnec directed not only cgainst
. lussis but 2lso agelnst the othrer countries wrieb
right atteck Germeny and JEpan, namely Lmerica,
Frence, Englend, ctey I tolgd Pim that thc extension
of thet Pact to othrer countrics, besides Russic, woul
depend on tre degrec of reedincss of our army and

— ‘ R e
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Qucstion:

Lnswer:

4121 Pege 3

nevy for tre war ageinst trose states, I told rim
a1 suet an cxtcnsion of the Psct would be very
difficul? for Jepen. To tris Libbentrop repliled
trot Cermneny weuld not ask us to do the lmpossible,
ond trat all tre perticulars of the bebhavior of the
contrecting pertics in case of such a conflict could
bc discucsscd after thc conclusion of the Pacte o o &
I rceeived a tclcgrem confirming that mejor-gcnerel
Kesarere forwarded rny message to tve leceding military
of ficcrs, All of trem concurred in the idea of -
concitding saer a Pect ond reported to thrc council
of I'ii~ ninisters wrieh consigted tren of Prime-
Minisvze Kenoye, Forcign Minister Ugekl, War kiniste:
tagaki, Kinister cf the Navy Yonal and Minister
of Finence Ikcde. Tre Council of fivc ministcers
also approved of trc idecz of conzluding suck a
Pact, and I reccived a telegraan fronm the Gencral
Steff offering me to contlnus Yhe negotiations
conccrning tre conclusion oi thec Paet, but beering
in mind tret, thoat trc militeary alliancc srould be
neinly dircc%cd ageinst Bussie and all other countric
whicr Germeny bed in view ¢rould be mentioned in
trc Focet as nminor okbjcctives,

Trrougl Ito wec rcecived gn instruction from our
coveimnent, Tre Besic 1dce of thet instruction wes
os follows: '""Russie sYould be the main objective
mentioned in the trecoty, £ll otrer countries strould
be ninor objcetives, ené trc cntry of Jepen into

the war egeinst otter countrics could teke pleccc
only if trose countrics were infected with communism,
s o« o o' T¥c divcrgenecy of views between Jopen

ond Germany led to furt™cr ncgotiations merking

time, and precticclly the Pect was not corcluded

in 1%39. Tris continued till tre conclusion by
Germeny of =z Pect of non-aggrcssion with tre Sovict
Union on Lugust 23, 1939 &s & result of which furtlex
negotiations conecerning trc conclusion of a2 rmilitery
alliencc bctween Gerneny, Jopen end Itely were dis-
continucde ¢ o « o

B T I S T D T R I I - 4@

Fow did you inform your Govcrnment zs to tre coursc
of trc Germen-Sovict war?

Lpproximately at tre end of July or at tre beginning
of Lugust 1941 I lcerned about trc slowing up of thre
pecc of tre adveaence of tre Germen ermy. Tre advance
was not procceding according to plan. loscow and
Leningrad werc not teken according to trhe German
plan. I asked informztion from Kibbentrop on tret

i Y L L T O el N i e il ~ e TR i e il s o B 5 Pl it
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subjcct, Ribbentrop invited Keitel to explein the
metters Keitel told me that the slowing up of trc
advance of the Germen army was caused by thre
cxcessive lengtr of communicetions and rear units
legging berind, and thet that was the rcason why
the pace of tre advence of the Germen army was
approximatcly thrce weecks behind plan.

Question: Do you know Nehara, prcss-agent of tre Japencse
Embassy in Bcrlin?

Ansger: Yes, I do. Fc worked as intcrpreter in our Embassy.
His fatrer wes Japenese, ris mother German, he
rcceived German cducetion, was connected with the
Embassy and was lately used for radio interception
work. PFc worked wittr us unofficially.

-----——--—-----—--——---——---------—ﬁ

The tcstimony wes recorded from thc words of the defendant,

Interrogated:  Col Rosenblitt,
Assistant Prosccutor from tre USSR
Internationel Militery Tribunal
For the Far Last.

Interprecter: Mo jor Pashkovsky.

secretary-
Stenogreprcr: Krjizcvskaya.
Interrogation becgan ¢ 08,30
Intcrrogetion was interrupted: 13.00
Interrogation continued ¢ 1730
Interrogation was over s 16,40

CERTIFICLTE OF TRANSLATION OF EXCERPTS OF TFE ABOVE DOCUMENI:

I, .o Vo Kunin, bercby certify that I am thorougrly con-
vcrsan% witr tre Fussian and English lengueges: and tke above
is 2 correct end truc translation of trc indicated exccrpts of
the a2bove Document,

Signeture: L. Kunin
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(Minutes of interrogation of Oﬂg)
Excerpts

Tre City of Tokyo. April 22, 1946

I, Col., S, I. Rosenblit, Assistant Prosecutor from the
USSR in tre International Miiitary Tribunal for tre Far East

with the Participaticn of Major Pastkovsky acting as interpreter
Interrogated t»e defendant who testified:

l. Surneme, first name: Os
2e gie—arrest
3. WPertytme ip: I wag

5§ , ./ \} 1 %
LWl l‘ "Wt ; =
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4L certifica T?U E‘tlﬂreteﬂrcz‘o; \being duly warned

of the responsibili¥y for felse trenslation 1s attoered to
tre minutes of interrogation.

Tre interrogation is conducted in Japenese,

Question: Wrat was the basic aim of Germeny and Japan whren
they concluded tre enti-Comintern Psct?

inswer: Tre Basic .aim of Germany and Japan wren they

concluded tre enti-Comintern Pact was to arrest
the growth of communism,

Question: Specificell

y egeinst wkat countries was this Pact
dirccted? .

’ nswer: Wren tris pact was concluded Russia/was meent in
‘ the first plece, Morcover thc Pect provided for

| the prevention of the spread of communist influcnce
; in other countrics es well.

!
' Question: Usuelly sucht Pacts ere concluded not egainst idees,
? but rgeinst & definite country, Are we correct

if we sey that trc anti-Comintern Pact wes direceted
egeinst tre Soviet Union®

"

N NaE
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LANsVICTS Tre enti-Comintern Pect-as 2 wbhole wes not direccted
spcelfically agalnst Russia, It was directcd ‘
cgeinst communism”in gcecneral, Fowever it followed
from the Pect trat in cesc of Kusso=-Germen war /

Jepen should not aid Russia, and eslso thret Germany
should not 2id Russia in case of o Russo-Japenesc
wars'

Deseribe tre ristory of ncgotiations cerried on in
1938-1939 concerning tre conclusion of & militery
allience betwecen Jepen, Germaeny and Italys

Question:

inswvicr: Lpproximately in June 1938 I reccived from tre
qgggngggﬁggnnral_gggtgztbe documcnts which set before
mc o task of probing in Germany the possibility
of concluding & military alliasnce with Japen in
virtuc of w*ieh Germany would bc under obligation
to cnter into tre war with tre Soviet Union in casc
the latter attacked Jepen and viec verse trat Jeopen
would bc under obligetion to enter into the wer with
tre Soviet Union if trc lattcr attacked Germany.
In trat timc I wes a military sttacke, A4t the
beginning of July 1938 I visited Ribbgpntrop for the
purposc of probing in a private manncr whrethcr
Germeny Yad any sucr intcntions., I told Ribbentrop

-  that I bad an idce of concluding & consultative Pect

between Japan and Germeny, i.c. & Pect in virtue of

| vrich in casc of conflict witr Russia, the party

. which beceme subjcet to attack should consult the

otrer perty concerning tre forms of aid the latter

‘ prTty should rcnder to tre perty which becamc

subject to attack, Just ot trhat time LKibbentrop

wes leeving as e Ya2d ris summer vacetion, Fe told

me tret if 2 military ellience was to he concluded

| it srould be a complete but not a balfwey alliencc,

' Thc obligation to told consultations 1s 2 Trolfwey
obligation and Vitler was cgainst suec}l helfway Peets

; and trercfore we could telk only zbout o conplete

g defensive alliencec in virtuc of wrich the contracting

i partics srould without reservetions enter into thre

| war witr the adversery wrichr attacked one of thre

‘ contracting perties,

\ ; Sccondly Ribbentrop told me trat Germany would like

~ to have a militery alliencc directed not only zgainst

lassia but also ggeinst thc othecr countries wriel

: right atteck Germeny and Japen, namely Lmerice,
Frence, Englend, ctce I told him thet trhc cxtension
of that Pact to otrer countrics, besides Russiec, woul
depend on tre dcgrec of rcedincss of our army and

"'—-—-i-——-_._-_"__-.-‘.-r
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Question:

i

. Answer:

00 s Nob 41015, » Pege 3

nevy for the war ageinst trose states, I told rinm
that such an oxtcnsion of the Pect would be very
difficult for Jepsn, To t%is ILibbentrop replied
thet Germany would not ask us to do the impossible,
and that all tre particulars of the behevior of the
contracting pertics in case of suck a confliet could
be discussed aofter tre conclusion of tre Pact., . . .
I received a telcgrem confirming thrat major-gcneral
Kesghare' forwarded my message to tve leading military
officers. All of them concurred in tre idea of -
concluding suct a Paet and reported to the gouneil
of Tive ministers/wrich consisted then of Prime.
Minister Konoye, Forcign Minister Ugaki, War Ministez
Itageki, Linister of the Nevy Yonai and Liinister

of Finence Ikede, Tre Council of five ministers
also 2pproved of trec idees of concluding suet o

Pact, and I reccivcd a tclegrem from the Genersl
Steff offering me to continue the negotietions
conccrning tre conclusion of the Pact, but beering
in mind tret, that the military allisnce stould be
neinly direc%ed against Russie and all otker countric

whrich Germeny bed in view should be mentioned in
the Pcet 2s minor Objcetives,

Trrougr Ito/wc rcecived ¢n instruction from our
governmment, Tre Besic idce of that instruction wes
cs follows: 'Russia stould be the main objective
mentioned in the treety, e11 otrer countries s*ould
be minor objecetives, and tre cntry of Jepen into

the war against otrer countrics could take pleec
only if those countrics were infeeted wity communism.
oL sre it "The divcrgeney of views betwcen Jopocn

and Germany led to furtter ncgotiations marking

time, and prectically the Peet was not concluded

in 1539. This continued t111 thre eo clusion by
Gecrmeny of & Peet of non-aggrcssion witr tre Sovict
Union on August 23, 1939 es 2 result of whick furtrer
negotiastions concerning tre conclusion of A nilitery

alliencec between Gernany, Jepen and Itely werc dis-
continueds o 4 , "

Yow did you inform your Govcrnment os to tre coursc
of the gprman-ﬁgyipp war?
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j subject, Ribbfntrop invited Keitel to explain the _
matter. Keltel told me that the slowing up of thre @
i:%; advence of the Germen army was ceused by the ®

A A ..

| cxcessive lengtr of communications and rear units
legging berind, and that that was the rcason why .
the pace of the advencec of the German army was
approximatcly thrce weecks berind plan,

e

|.ﬂ-‘-"—-‘-=—
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Question: Do you know Naharay press-agent of the Japenese
Embassy in Bcrlin?

Fis father was Japenese, his mother German
received German educetion, was connected wltr the
Embassy end was lately used for radio interception
work, FHc worked witl us unofficieslly,

: f_/ Ansgeri Yes, I do. Fec worked as interpreter in our Embessy.
i

The testimony wes recorded from thc words of the defendant,
OSHIMA, Firosri,

Interrogeted: Col Rosenblitt,
Assistant Prosecutor from tre USSR
Internationel Militery Tribunsal
For the Far Last.

Interpreter: Ma jor Pashkovsky.

Secretary- \
Stenogreprer: Krjizevskaya, i
Interrogation began f 08,30
Interrogetion was interrupted: 13.00
Interrogation continued ¢ 17430
| Interrogation was over : 16,40

CERTIFICALTE OF TRANSLATION OF EXCERPTS OF TFE ABOVE DOCUNENT:

. V. Kunin, bercby certify that I am troroughrly con-
VCTSEH% witk the Lhussian and English lengueges: and the above

1s 2 correct end true translation of trec indicated excerpts of
the above Document,

Signeture: A. Kunin
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\ INTERROGATION OF
(Marquis) KIDO, Koichi

(Continued)

DATE AND TIME: 25 February 1946, 0930 - 1600 hours
PLACE : Sugamo Prison, Tokyo, Japan
PRESENT : (Marquis) Kido, Koichi
Mr. Henry R* Sackett, Interrogator
Lt Fred F* Suzukawa, Interpreter
(Miss) S. M+ Betar, Stenographer

Questions by : Mr. Sackett ;

Q When we stopped the other day, we were talking about Foreign

Minister MATSUOKA going to Germany, as written in your diary
on February l. What was it he told you as his reason for

wanting to go to Germany at that particular time? You had a
conversation with im on February le. What reason did he give

for going to Germany at that particular time?

A T remember that he went out there to make closer contact as
a result of the conclusion of the Tripartite Pact.

Q And was that the reason he gave you for wanting to go to Ger-
many when you talked to him on these occasions in 1941%

A T don't remember the details but generally that is the extent
of which I remember.

Q He, in his conversations with you, advocated closer relations
with Japan and Germany and wanted to go there to foster that
relationship?

A Yes, that is what I remember,
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You mention on February 1 that MATSI(KA's program in those
days was to try to conclude the China war in April and he
then wanted to concentrate Japan's efforts towards the solu-
tion of the southern problem, Will you tell me what the

southern problem was insofar as MATSU(KA's point-of-view was
concerned?

MATSUCKA always talked freely of his future plans and he

sald upon returning from Germany, he will take up the matter
of the China problem and upon solving the China problem,

he thought to take up the southern problem. By the southern
problem he meant the probvlem between Thailand and French Indo-
China. Hitherto, because Japan acted as mediator and hed

greater power there, he thought to influenee those rsasons. ¥

In your diary, you write that MATSI®XA stated that the
southern problem was the greatest problem that T apan had,

I still don't comprehend just what MATSUCKA had in mind when
he spoke of the southern problem, It certainly is mch more
than just the dispute between Thailand and French Indo-China.
What was the real southern problem in which MATSUCKA, as
Foreign Minister of Japan, was interested in?%

- He intended to obtain a foothold in Thailand and French Indo-

China and then expand Japanese influences into the southern
regions and upon doing so, he foresaw a clash with British
and American influence in that region,

That was one of the reasons he was particularly interested
in cooperating with Germany and Italy, in order to gain their
assistance and bring about Japanese expansion in the Scuth
Pacific?

I believe it must have been so.

He felt that in going South, Japan would run into oppositian
with the United States and Great Britain and in order to help
put over the southern expansion program, it was the best policy
for Japan to get the support of Germany and Italy in that
regard? Is that a fair statement?

But MATSUCKA did not wish to go to the extent of using force
to gain that end,

How did he propose that a foothold be obtained in French Indo-

China or in that vicinity in order that Japan might work out
fram there in expanding its influence,

426

Fod Hec. 4/37




. &

| | A T did not hear of any positive and concrete plan regarding

that.

Q vou say he wanted to get a foothold? What did he have in
mind by "foothold"?

A T believe that he intended to obtain a dominant position
there by acting as mediator. ;

Q And in connection with the mediation, he wanted Japan 1o
obtain the right to certain bases in French Indo-China for

operational purposes?

A Yes.

Q MATSUCKA advocated that in those days? That was his theory
of Japan's foreign policy. Is that right?

A Yes.

Q Why did MATSUCKA feel thet the southern problem was the
greatest problem that Japan had? I think you said the
other day = even greater than the China war.

A Because a single mistake would ceuse war with England and
the United States. That is why he considered it the greates?®

problem,

Q Why was it that MATSUCKA, as Foreign Minister, felt Japan
needed to expand in the South? What were his reasons for
wanting Japan to expand in the South as distinguished fram

China,

A T do not know Mr. MATSUCKA'S feeling in regard to that. I
only know his radical view-point,.

Q When you say "radical view-point*, what do you have in mind?

A Aggressiveness.

Q He, as Foreign Minister advocated a policy or a program of
expansion and the spreading of Japenese influence into China
and also of the South. Is that right?

A T believe 80.

Q Understand that when I am asking these questions, I am not ime

plying that you personally advocated such a program. I am
trying to find out the facts and the truth of the situation
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This is another case where Mr. MATSUCKA expressed his opinion
and future plans, as he always does and he isn't the type of
person that would go into details. We did not take his words
into serious consideration becanse we didn't think the China
problem could be solved by April, We considered his saying
as a dream,

You mean that when he was mentioning the Southern problem in
those days, you didn't take it very seriously?

No, not seriocusly. His assertion that the China problem can
be solved by April was extremely unbelievable,

You thought that was a little short to be able to settle up
the China problem but there were many people in high office
in Japan that felt Japan should expand its influence into
the South Pacific, were there not?

Yes,

When MATSU(KA stated that the Southern problem in the end
was one of the most important problems Japan had, he was
supported in that program by the military, was he not?

Yes, he had supporters among the military and among the Navy.

/

In other words, our man we mentioned the other day, SATO,

favored MATSUCKA's policy of expanding in the South Pacific,
did he not?

I believe so. I do not know the facts.

How about the Chief of Staff of the Army and Navy. What was
their attitude with reference to the South Pacific in those

days.

I don't believe the Navy at this time had any idea of operating

in the Southern areas.

Bow about the Army?

Becanse unless the Navy goes out there, the Army would not be
able to operate so that matter has been more or less a source

of controversey.

In other words, the Army wanted the Navy to interest itself in
the South Pacific and the Navy was holding back? Is that a
true statement?
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I believe that was the situation at that time.

The Army felt that Japan should expand notb only in China
but also in the South Pacific, but the Navy was more cone
servative and had not adopted the expansionist philosophy
to a great degree at that time?

Yes.

What was there in the South Pacific that MATSUCKA and the
Army leaders felt that Japan needed? Why was it necessary
for Japan to expand in the South as distinguished from China?

The matter of natural resources., Japan wanted to obtain
rubber and oil and Malayan iron. If those resources werse
obtainable by peaceful means, she would never have resorted
to war and the acuteness of those items was greatly felt
and that became a problem,

Because of the long war that Japan was engaged in with China,
Tapan needed more and more oil, tin, iron and items of that
type to fight a war with and the Army ceame to the conclusion
that if they were going to fight this war successfully, she
needed more raw materials?

YQH.

And the Army decided to obtain these raw materials fram such
places as Malay, Sumatra, the Philippines and places of that

type?
Yes.

You say that the military group wanted to obtain those items
peaceably, if possible. Is that correct?

Yese.

In other words, they also advocated if they couldn't be ob-
tained peaceably, it would be necessary in the end for Japan
to use force to get needed raw materials, Is that correct?

Yes.
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MATSUCKA felt that way and what we are talking about was
really the foreign policy of MATSUGKA with reference to
the Southern Pacific?

Yes .,
And TOJO was of the same mind?
I believe so,

You talked to him at different times in the spring of 1941,
Didn't this question of raw materials and the Southern Pacific
problem enter into your conversations? What did he say about

it‘-?
At this time, I had no direct contact with TOJO,

I don't mean on February 1, necessarily, but during the spring
of 1941 you talked to TQJ0O several times, as mentioned in your

diary.

At that time with T0JO, I was always talking over matters of
Army personnel and personalities because he was then only a
War Minister and I don't believe we spoke of other matters
outside of that, although there may have been some exceptions,
TOJO is very difficult to converse with because he would leave
as soon as he expressed his own opinion,

You mean you couldn't argue with the man. He was right and
everybody else was wrong? Was tha_t his general attitude?

Yes,

He was a very strong-willed individual?
Yes, strong-willed,

I can appreciate that but he no doubt had a definite opinion
with reference to the Southern Pacific problem. What was
that opinion. A man so opionated as T0JO would have an idea
on a subject such as that,

Because I did not speak to him direetly, I did not know what
type of an opinion he had, I believe he represented the

Army's opinion.
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We can safely say, can we not, that in the early spring of
1941 the foreign policy of Japan as evidenced by the Govern-
ment was to obtain necessary war materials in the Southern
Pacific, peacefully, if possible, but if necessary by war?

Yes,

One of the details of this plan to obtain raw meterials was,
as I understand it, to obtain scme bases for operation in
French Indo-China by negotiation, if possible, Is that correct?

Yes.

Of course, the obtaining of mere bases in French Indo-China
would not necessarily produce all this - raw materials -
What was MATSUKA's plan as to what should be done after
these bases were obtained in French Indo-China?

I believe that the underlying plan at that time was to attack
China from the South., This matter about resorting to war in
order to get badly needed raw materials was only a contemplation
of the military and not an actual plan. There were no conerete
plans whatsoever in that respect.

By that you mean the military leaders such as T0JO, the Chief
of Staff, SUGIYAMA and SATO made statements indicating that
"we have to have raw materials in the South if we are going
to keep on fighting the war and one way or another, we have
to get them", Is that about what was going on?

Yes, and they were thinking about it.

Of course, MATSUOKA had in mind that by obtaining bases in
French Indo-China to attack China, they would be valuable
places of operation in the event it was necessary to fight
a war in the South Pacific to get materials. Is that his

theory?
That did not appear on the surface at that time, I do not know.

Certainly, that would be a logical bit of reasoning, would
it not?

I cannot say conclusively regarding that,
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Q MATSUCKA seemed to feel that this Southern problem was so
importeant to Japan. What was his plan or theory as to how
to obtain these raw materials in the South Pacific? How
was he going to get them? What did he advocate doing?

A He intended to negotiate. A year prior to this .MASHI
Went to Java and negotiated for oil but the oil Ad B
livered abundantly or sufficiently; therefore, this matter
of oil was a great problem.

Q In other words, the oil problem was becoming increasingly
more important as war in China went on and on?

A Yes.

Q And it had to be solved by some means or other?

A And the Navy was greatly concerned because if it was to 5'
operate, it needed plenty of oil and there wasn't any :
source of oil available,

Q And what specific type of operations did the Navy need more
oil for?

A Even for the blockade of the China Coast, it was utilizing
a tremendous amount of ships and oil,

Q How did MATSI(XA propose to obtain supplies or needed materials
from MALAY, What, if anything, did he do to obtain them?

A He intended to negotiate for it.

Q Were there any negotiations entered into with Malay for
supplies ?

A I believe there were individual negotiations being done
quite a lot but no direct representative was sent as in
the case of Java,.

Q How about the other countries in the South Pacific? Java
belonged to the Duteh, Were there any definite negotiations
with the Dutch in 194f¢. Were there any other negotiations
with the South?

A I have no special recollection other than that done individually,
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What did MATSU(KA have in mind when he said that "Without the 1
solution of the Southern mroblem, the oil solution of the
China problem cannot be attained,"?

That significance is not clear to me. 1
He said that to you?
Yes,

What do you think he had in mind when he implied that in
order to solve the China rroblem, you would also have to
solve what he called the "Southern problem"?

I believe it is one of his imagination. I cannot comprehend
that,

At least he was emphasizing he thought that the Southern
problem was the most important problem that Japan had?

Yes,

I notice on February 18, you talked with the Emperor about B
MATSUKA's trip to Germany and expressed same concern about |
it. What was that conversation between you and the Fmperor,

in effect, on that occasion?

I told the Emperor that MATSUGKA is leaning too much toward
Germany and that had a bad influence on Britain and America
and it was greatly concerned by the people at large, He
said that the Govermment should take measures of not letting
MATSOKA do everything his way, That is what I told the

Emperor.,

What did the Emperor say with 'reference to that line of
thinking?

The Emperor felt the same way about it.

Did the BEmperor or you do anything to try to dissuade MATSUCKA
from going to Euyrope?

And so I phoned Prime Minister KONOYE to take into consideration
MATSTKA's tour at that time.

What did you say to KONOYE, as near as you can remember?
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Premier KONOYE agreed to this and he said that he cannot
stop MATSUC(KA's trip to foreign countries but he will be
very cautious in respect to that because of the deleterious
effect it has on Britain and America.

Why couldn't he stop MATSU(KA from meking the trip if he
wanted to?

Because it was already decided that he will go to Germany
and Germany has already been informed in that respect.

Who decided he should go to Germany if there were people such
as yourself, KONOYE and the Emperor who thought he should
not go?

Because he had already been granted permission before these
problems had arisen. His trip was decided in the latter part
of January and the problems started arising in the middle of

Februﬂ.ryi

In other words, in Jamuary 1941, it was decided that MATSUKA
would make this trip to Germany, Italy and Russia? Is that
right?

Yes.

And that was with the full consent and agreement of the Governe
ment, including the Emperor and XKONOYE and all those concerned?
Is that correct?

Y_IGB ©

What was there in the situation between January and February
that caused the Emperor to feel differently about it?

At the time that his trip came about, MATSUOKA was saying that
he was making a trip only for a matter of courtesy but later

on he started talking about the southern problems and things
like that so people began worrying about it. He is so oute
spoken and so self-confident that people were greatly con-
cerned. b

In other words, between January and February 1941, MATSUCKA
had became so outspoken in advocating Japanese expansion in
the South that there came to be fear on the part of certain
people that a trip to Germany would cause resentment in the
United States and Britain, Is that right?

Yes,
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Was anything done to try to stop MATSUCKA from meking these
expansionist statements if there were leaders in the Govern=-

ment that were opposed to such a program?

I believe there were some in the Cabinet that cautioned him
but I do not know concretely in that respect.

Certainly the foreign policy is not determined exclusively
by the Foreign Minister, is it?

NOe

And there would be others in the Govermnment that would have
a lot to say about what the final policy would be. What were
they doing to curtail or limit the program that MATSUCKA

was advocating openly?

Because MATSUCKA's assertions were so fantastic, 1l was very
difficult to comprehend because this wasn't seriously taken
as Government policy. It was very difficult to handle.

But as you look back on it now, certainly what he was advocat-
ing in those days led Japan into this clash with Great Britain
and the United States, didn't 1it? . |

Yese.

I take it from what you say that in 1941 you felt that MATSUCKA
was somewhat of a radical and advancing some rather radical
ideas?

Upon assuming his post in the KONOYE Catinet as Foreign Minister,
MATSUOKA reshuffled the persomnnel in the Foreign minisiry and
replaced all those with Anglo-Saxon lcanings; that is, those
persons that were favorable to America and Great Britain,

There are always two factions in a Govermment when you get a
problem as big as this involved, Who were the others that
sympathized with and sided in with MATSICKA in those days in
advocating this southern expansion? You told me same who

were opposed to it, now who was in favor of it and lined up

with him?

. "
T don't believe that MATSUCKA had any supporiers because ewen
T0J0 at the time that he quit got into a fight with MATSUCKA.

But TOJO suscribed to the principles that it was necessary for
Japan to obtain supplies in the Southern Pacific, didn't he?

434




But in the method of carrying it out, I believe there was
great disagreement between TOJO and MATSUCKA. Therefore,
in the Cabinet, MATSU(KA did not have any friends or sup-
porters at the last stage.

The Cabinet members other than the War Minister did not con-
template southern expansion? In other words, MATSUCKA and also
the War Minister were thinking in terms of expansion into the
South Pacific but the rest of the Cabinet were somewhat ine
different to it. Is that right and had no plan to that effect?

Yes.

vou also mentioned that there was a difference between MATSUCKA
and the rest of the Cabinet with reference to the method

as to how this expansion should be carried out. What was that
difference. What did MATSUCKA advocate as to the method of
getting supplies that was different as to how the rest of the

cabinet felt?

T0J0 wanted immediately to mediate in solving the China in-
cident but MATSUCKA vehemently opposed any connections or ine
volvement with Britain and America. MATSUCKA was greatly dis-
trustful toward any connections with Great Britain and America.
While he was on a trip to Germany, the negotiations with America
was conducted and he greatly was irked or ired by that. I be=
lieve that MATSUCKA wanted to do everything by himself. He had
a grandiose illusion of himself,

He was the leading opponent of good relations between Japan
and the United States and Great Britain?

T meant that MATSUCKA would say that he was opposed to any war

with America and Britain but he vigorously opposed any ne-
gotiations being conducted in his absence.

He was an advocate of close relations with Germany and put up

a strong front whenever the foreign policy with the United
States was mentioned?

Yeés.

What was MATSUCKA's position in the Government immediately prior
to his entry into the Second KONOYE Cabinet?

I believe he was President of the Manchurian Railway.
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Q Was there g change of attitude in the foreign policy of
Japan towards the United States immediately after MATSU QKA
beceme Foreign Minister?

Ambassador Grew of America and Ambassador Craigie of Great

Britain did not trust MATSUKA. I heard rumors to that
effect.

Q Th:l:s Southern problem, so-called by MATSUCKA, was it dise
cussed in Government circles and advocated to any degree at
all prior to MATSUA coming into the Second KONOYE Cabinet

the Cabinet o

Q Had not the military leaders advocated obtaining such supplies
prior to 1940 when the Secong Konoye Cabinet was formed?

Q In other words, the desperate situation in China tended to
bring on the need for getting supplies in the Southern Pacifice

A Yes.
Q TOJO and MATSUCKA saw eye~to-eye with reference to getiing

these supplies from the Southern Pacifiec. They were in accord
with this same policy of getting supplies from the Southern




I think we could say that the military or the Army group
generally sympathized or supported that foreign policy?

Yes .

When was it, would you say that the Navy came around and
agreed with that program?

The core of the Navy around the young officers beceme greatly
concerned about the problem of oil and about the matter of
America starting on a naval building program. They were
highly fearful that the United States will attack Japan.

Also the transfer of the Atlantic Fleet to the Pacific greatly
stimulated naval opinion, But the Japanese Navy's directing
body was very calm at this time.

The Govermmentofficials in Japan realized in those days,
did they not, that the activities on the part of the United

States were in protest against Japan's fighting in China,
Isn't that right?

Yes, the Japanese Govermment was aware of that.

Were there any people in the Japanese Government that advocated
openly the ending of the China war and the withdrawal of troops
from China in order to solve the problem and thereby improve
relations with the United States and Great Britain?

Yes, that was the problem of the highest concern and that is
why the KONOYE Cabinet started negotiations with America in
order to settle the Chinese incident.

Did anyone advocate the withdrawal of troops from China on

the theory that Japan had wrongfully expanded into China in
the first instance,

The nature of withdrawing troops fram China was the greatest
problem and the most difficult and it was the problem of the
highest concern by KONOYE. The matter was to retain the face
of the Army, It became apparent that the Army favored the
ending of the China incident through mediation by America if
the Army could . ' retain its face. KONOYE favored the
settlement of all the Pacific problems and then to teke on the
metters of details and small problems after having the settle-
ment taken up on a large-scale., He favored settling the over-
all problem of the Pacific area and then settling the small
problems, KONOYE's idea was to draft a Pacific Charter just
like the Atlantic Charter that was drafted on the other side
and with the Pacific Charter, KONOYE thought to settle the
Pacific problems. President Roosevelt was agreeable to KONOYE's

proposal and it was even intended that they would meet in
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A (Cont.) Alaskan waters but the Secretary of State was very

! cautious and he said that the details would have to be

| settled first and therefore the problems became difficult.

- And the unfortunate thing about the plan was at this time
Japanese troops began to be poured into French Indo-China
and I believe that America thought that Japan was obtaining
time in order to pour in troops.

Q Why was it that Japan caused these troops to go into F:_:encil
Indo-China when it was such an inopportune moment in the
negotiations and thereby caused all these difficulties,

A That is because the perogatives of the Supreme Command is
held separately by different organs and not under the sup-
reme control of the Prime Minister and that is why every-
thing became difficult,

Q In other words, there wasn't a unanimity of opinion with
KONOYE and the military insofar as trying to negotiate a
settlement, The military didn't care while KONOYE wanted
it settled.

A Yes,

Q Was there anyone in Japan in the early part of 19)1 froam
the Emperor on down that took the position or agreed more
or less with America and Great Britain that Japan had gone
too far in China in trying to settle same little incidents
that started the affairs and in so doing had violated the
Kellogg-Briand Pact and the Nine-~Power Treaty, and; there-
fore, Japan was wrong in international law and should withe
draw her troops and cease the violation of these treaties.
Did anyone go so far as to agree with that situation and ad-
vocate such a solution,

A There were no conclusive assertions to the effect that Japan
was in the wrong because at that time there were over 200 p
incidents whereby Japanese nationals had been attacked in 1
China and also the Chinese primary schools were teaching .-,
anti-Japanese sentiment in its text books and therefore
Japan thought that she had to do samething about it. 3She
did not take on the attitude conclusively that Japan was
in the wrong and Japan finally got to the stage where, if
she can retain her face, she would be willing to settle the
China incident




Q Were there not any officials in Japan that appreciated the
fact that it was perfectly natural for China to fight back
when Japan had all those troops in China and there wasn't
anything unusual about China teaching in the schools OPPOSie=
tion to Japan when Japanese troops were on her soil?

A Japan was aware of the fact that as long as she had troops -
in China, such incidents would occur so Japan wanted to withe-
draw her troops from China and start new friendly relations
with China and that matter was specified clearly in the fun-
damental policy to China as given by Japan. This was fully
realized by Japan. The leaders wanted to settle the problems

Q But there was no one in high government office in Japan in g
those days that took the position that Japan had violated |
the treaties I mentioned, so far as the China war was cone- K.
cerned. They didn't go that far, is that right? :

A No, the matter of treaties did not enter into the picture
because of the assertion of self-defense,

Q In other words, the Japanese Govermment thought the self-
defense theory answered all the treaty questions and that
all that was being done by Japan in China was strictly
self-defense?

A Yes.

Q  Did the Emperor hold to that theory in those days that all 1
the activities in China were a defensive measure, {

A The Emperor was greatly concerned about that because he was
informed by the previous ILord Keeper of the Privy Seal MAKINO
very fully on that matter and the Emperor acted accordingly
to the explanations and the information given to him by the

Government.

Q What was it that the Iord Keeper, MAKINO, advised the Emperor
with reference to the China situation?

A Lord Keeper MAKINO informed the Emperor on the matter of
treaties and the Manchurian incidant.

Q What did he tell him with reference to the treaties and the
Manchurian incident?




As said before, Dr. TACHI was consulted on that matter
and he said that may lead to a violation of the treaties
but because the Government made excuses and gave contrary
indications, the situation developed the way it did.

What advice was given to the Emperor with reference to
the violation of treaties sofar as the China War was cone
cerned as distinguished from Manchuria?

On the China matter, Count MAKINO did not say anything.

Who did advise the Emperor with reference to the treaty
status in connection with the China War?

The Lord Keeper of the Privy Seal at that time was YUSAWA.

What did he tell the Emperor with reference to the treaty
violation?

I did not hear anything,

Did you discuss the treaty situation with the Emperor after
you became Lord Keeper?

Because it was after all the things had progressed and
developed, there had not been any particular conversation

about it?

What generally was said between you and the Emperor with
reference to treaty violations?

The Emperor said he was greatly concerned because Japan wasn't
respecting her treaties very much but because the treaties
were not being respectsthroughout the wodd, it was very dif-
ficult but the BEmperor said America is respecting treaties.

And in what respect did the Emperor feel that Japan was not
living up to her treaty?

Because since the outbreak of the Manchurian Incident, the
BEmperor personally felt that treaties were being violated.,

The truth of the matter is that intelligent people and cone
servative people, such as the Emperor and yourself, fully
realized what was going on both in Manchuria and China was
not strictly a self-defense operation. Is that true?
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A At the beginning, I believe it was a matter of self-defense
but I believe it was utilized as a foothold for future
developmment.

Q Yes, I understand but you said the other day with reference
to Manchuria, that you personally, and also the Emperor, felt ;
in the early days that it was likely self-defense but there
came a time in the Manchurian Incident when the expansion ~
went so far that you fully realized it was no longer a matter
of self-defense. Isn't that true?

A Yes.

Q Likewise, in the China incident. Assuming in the early days
you again felt that the operation was one of self-defense -
and the Emperor - certainly in 1941 there had been enough
activity in China so that you and the Fpperor again realized
what was going on in China was not self-defense, Is that true?

A I couldn't consider it as self-defense around 1941.
Q And the Emperor felt that way about it, too?

A The Emperor realized it, too, but the problem was how to
settle the incident. The Emperor gave strong words for
following the treaties to the letter and in the case of
the fundamental treaty with China, the Emperor cautioned |
it must be followed strictly and adhered to. The Japanese .
Army in China did not favor that treaty and therefore the :
Emperor gave strong words in regard to the treaty that it
must be adhered to and followed.

Q In other words, you are stating then, that the Emperor
advocated that the Nine-Power Treaty should be lived up to
and that is really what the United States was advocating,
was it not?

A Yes.

Q Then, it is hard for me to understand why the Emperor didn't
take a more active part in trying to accamplish the result
that apparently the leaders of the Nation agreed upon. Was
it the Army that was preventing that from coming about?
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In the February 26 incident, the Cabinet had a definite
opinion regarding the incident, so the Emperor was able to
take a firm stand but in the matter of self-defense, the
cabinet is dragged by the sentiment or the opinion of the
Army and for that reason, the Emperor could not take a firm
stand because the Cabinet is dissentinge.

I understand.

The source of trouble between China and Japan has always
been in the stationing of Japanese troops in Chinese soil
and with the start of the China incident, it became apparent
that complete withdrawal of Japanese troops must be effected.

vou stated a little while ago that the Army as a whole didnt't
like the Nine-Power Treaty. Is that right?

I believe 80e.

Who was it in the Army, you recall, was particularly oute
spoken in opposition to the Nine-Fower Treaty.

There weren't hardly any persons outspoken in that respect
beceuse the Army as a rule is not outspoken.

How did you know that the Army didn't like the Nine-Power
Treaty unless someone said samething about it.

Because by judging the course of the Manchurian Incident,

persons like MINAMI in the Kwantung Army did not favor the
Nine-Power Treaty because if they did, such a thing would

not have occurred.

MATSUCKA did not favor the Nine-Power Treaty, did he?

His opinion is indiscernible. Becausé he went as Ambassador
plenipotentiary in withdrawing from the League of Nations,

T believe he was not favorable to the Nine~Power Treaty.

The War Minister was opposed to the Nine-Power Treaty, wasn't he?

Because TOJO did not hold an important position during the
Manchurian Incident, I do not know of his opinion.

The Nine-Power Treaty was involved in the China War as well
as the Manchurian War, wasn't it?
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Such a feeling was not held in the China Incident.
What do you mean by thate I do not understand you.
Because it was a self-defense matter.

You feel personally there was more violation of the Nine
Power Treaty involved in the Manchurian campaign than there
was in the China campaign? :

Personally, I think so.

You think that the China campaign was more near to self-
defense than the Manchurian operation?

Yes. In the Manchurian incident, there was no organized re-
sistance but in the China incident around Shanghai, the
forces of CHIANG KAI SHEX was aggressive and so in the China
incident, an actual war has taken shape.

Let us look at your diary on February 24 where you refer to
an andience with the Emperor with reference to the border
dispute in Thailand and French Indo-China. What was the
gist of that conversation on that occasion?

I have no accurate recollection.

On February 26, what did Vice-Minister of the Navy, TOYODA,
have to say about MATSU(KA's trip to Germany?

I remember Admiral TOYODA saying that a trip to Germany by
MATSU KA would have an unfavorable repercussion in Britain

and America and so he inquired couldn't anything be done
about it.

In other wordg, he was opposed to the trip being made?

Yes. The Navy generally was opposed to it because the Navy
was greatly concerned about the repercussion to Britain

and America.

Did he go so far as to say that the Navy felt, at that time,
at least, that the United States and Britain were justified
in opposing what was taking place in China?




The Navy just understood the position of America and I cannot
say conclusively td what extent it supported American opposition.

You think the Navy at that time desired to avoid war with
the United States, if possible?

Yes.

Was the attitude of the Army one of indifference® That is to
say, they didn't wish war with the United States but if they
had to fight a war with the United States it was all right
with them¢?

The Army did not favor war with America. It was in the posie
tion that if America came on attacking, it could not avoid
having battle with her.

In other words, the Army wanted to settle the China incident
in its own way and did not want interference from outsiders.
Was that generally the attitude?

Yés.

This Vice~-Admiral ISHIHARA , mentioned on February 26. I
. take it this is a different man than the Kwantung Army
general?

This is the same man.,

When I called him "Vice-Admiral®, that was a mistake?

Yes
Ne, he is a general,

You mention his being placed on the waiting list. What
happened with reference to General ISHIHARA in those days?

Because General ISHIHARA was disregerding military discipline,
TOJO had him put on the retired list and T0OJO put him on

the retired list despite the close connection ISHIHARA had
with the Ronin and the Rightists organizations. At first,

it was felt to put him on the retired list would be impossible,
Nevertheless, TOJO took a firfm stand and put him on the retired
list..




What had he done to violate military discipline®

It is a matter concerning the military only and therefore
I do not know.

Did he contimue on the retired list, or did he later became
active?

He is on the retired list ever since that.

That is the same ISHIHARA that was an active General in the
Manchurian campaign?

Yes.

Wasn't he a sympathizer of and a supporter of the Chinese
campaign?

He wasn't very favorable aggressively in regard to China. He
was more or less for the stabilization and settlement of
Manchuria in order to prepare ocurselves for Russia., About
three or four years after the Chinese Incident, he even ad-
vocated the complete withdrawal of Japanese troops from China.

And what reason did he give for advocating the withdrawal
of troops?

Because he felt that with the present course of action, Japan
would not be able to obtain the trust and confidence of the
Chinese people and therefore would not be able to obtain the
friendship of the Chinese.

Well, was it because of that attitude on his part, he was
put on the retired list? He was opposed to the consensus
of opinion of the Army. .

No, instead of that, I believe it was a matter of disregm‘ding
military discipline.

On February 28 in your diary, what did MATSUCKA have to say
with reference to the proposed negotiation of the French Indo=-

China dispute?
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At this time, there has not been much progress in the
mediation of the Thailand-French Indo-China dispute and
for guite a while, the Emperor was not given any word of
it so the BEmperor inquired about the matter.

Was MATSUCKA personally conducting the mediation of that
dispute, he, individually?

A special representative, MATSUMIYA, was sent there and
MATSUCKA was very active in Tokyo.

Was this man a member of the Foreign Ministry?
YéBe

As T understand it, MATSUC(KA, in those days, told you that
the main reason that he was advocating the settlement of
that dispute was so that an effort might be made on the part
of Japan to obtain bases for operation in order that China
might be attacked fram the South,

Yes.

MATSUCKA told you that when you talked about it. Is that right?
He told you that was the reason for the mediation and that was
the policy of Japan?

Yes.

Oon March 1, you had a conversation with Minisier HIRANUMA
with reference to a reform in the Imperial Rule Association.
Do you remember what the proposed reform was?

At this time, the Imperial Rule Assistance Association was
being highly debated in the Diet and it was said that the
Tmperil Rule Asdistance Association was a public welfare asso-
ciation rather than a political party and HIRANUMA gave eX=-
plapation to that effect but it was feared that the Diet might
consider the Imperiel Rule Assistance Assocliation as a
Fascistic or Nazi association, or that it may become so, but .
it actually was an organizatiom which sould bring the sentiment
of the people to the Government and the sentiment of the
Government to the people and act as a liaison., It was explained
that the Imperial Rule Assistance Association will be cone-
structed to that purpose of acting as a go-between between

the Govermment and the people.

Was that Premier KONOYE's theory of the Association?

41y6
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This was the explanation by HIRANUMA because at this time,
KONOYE was ill and in bed. Naturally, HIRANUMA explained
under the orders of KONOYE.

This Mr. i‘.ISHI that you mention on February 26, Was that the
SHINSUKE KISHI who later became the Minister in the TOJO
Cabinet?

Yes,

Was he a Rightist?

No, he is not a Rightist. He was one of the most capable officials.,
Would yf:m classify him in the conservative group?

He had a very progressive mind as a Government official,

Was he a close friend of Premier T0JO?

No, I don't think he was an old friend of T0J0 but probably he
got to know him while in Manchuria because he was an official
in Manchuria,

Can we classify him as an expansionist?

No, I cannot consider him as an expansionist. I believe he wanted
to expand without resorting to force.

We mentioned several times this negotiation of the dispute in

French Indo-China and MATSUCKA's plan of obtaining bases there.
How did MATSUKA propose to obtain these bases? VWas it a
condition precedent of negotiating the dispute that French Indo-
China agreed that Japan have bases there?

No, rather than a precedent, I believe that was to be requested
upon the success of the mediation,

Did MATSU(KA discuss with these countries the desire on the part
of Japan to have bases in advance of negotiating the dispute?

I do not know judging what happened then. I believe it was some-
thing that was concluded up later.

Although MATSUKA had that in mind, you don't think he disclosed
Japan's policy in advance of negotiating the dispute?

hi7
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A That isn't clear to me.

;f "" Q Well, after the dispute,was negotiated, as it was during the
e . spring of 1941, how were these bases obtained in French Indo- ]

A I believe that the Navy established bases there. I do not
know the details.

Do you know where they were?
I believe it was Camranh Bay.
Was that in Southern Frenche-Indo®China or in China?

[]

Ge Ggraph
I don't lmowf.’h‘c ;'gry miche I do not know.

& P O P

Were the bases established by virtue of a treaty or an agree-
ment between French Indo-China and Japan?

A I believe so,.
Q Was there more than one base? How many were there?
A I do not know in that respect'.
Q On March 4 in your diary, you discussed with the Emperor
General HATA's opinions with reference to the Southern DX O

gram. What did the Emperor tell you with reference to Gen-
eral HATA on that occasion?

A This was a conversation had just before HATA departed as
commanding chief of the China expeditionary force and I be-
lieve that he did not have any preparation whatsoever for
solving the operation, He held the opinion that Japan must
be very cautious in making excursions into southern regions,

Q Was he opposed to having bases in French Indo-China from
which to operate in China?

A I do not know or have any recollection to that extent.,

Q But you think he toock a position contrary to that of MATSIGKA :
insofar as the southern program was concerned? |

A Yes, I have recollection to that effect.

LLs 1
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Q Was he opposed to obtaining necessary oil and minerals and
supplies from the southern region?

A Naturally, he desired those things but he felt those things
must be obtained by peaceful means.,

Q In other words, MATSJ(KA and TOJO, in those days were talking
in terms of obtaining these supplies peaceably, if possible,
but by war, if necessary, and General HATA, before leaving
for China, took the position they should be obtained peace- 3
ably but not by use of farce. Is that right? #

A He felt that force must be taken very cautiously.,

Q Do you mean by that, he wasn't opposed to using force if Japan
could get away with it?

A He was practically opposed to it.

Q And the leaders of the use of force in the South at this
moment when you write in your diary were MATSJ (KA and War
Minister TOJO. Is that right?

A I cannot say conclusively they were determined to use force
at this time,

Q But® it was their statements with reference to the Southern
Progrem that General HATA was opposed to, isn't that righte

A Yes,

Q In other words, it must have been generally known eamong Govern-
ment circles that there was a faction that was advocating the
use of force to get supplies in the South; otherwise General
HATA couldn't have known about it to be opposed to it. Isn't
that true?

A Yes, | i

Q So it was sufficiently well defined that it came up for discussion )
before the Emperor and General HATA expressed his opinion on ‘
the subject.

Yeal I';v,
What was the Far Eastern Federation that you discussed with

Mr. ANDO?

This was a federation advocated by Lt. General ISHIHARA. It
was a federation composed of China, Manchukuo ard Japan,
Hitherto, the placement of China, Menchukuo and Japan in the
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(Cont) same position was opposed by the military but lately
General MUTO, the Chief of the Buream of Military Affairs,
agreed to it and to establish a branch in Japan.

What was it that these military generals were opposed to with
respect to the Far Eastern Federation.

I believe that there were personal animésity because General
ISHTHARA has been advocating that and also because it placed
all the countries on the same equal footing the-seme as J apan,

What was the Far Eastern Federation plan? What was its
purpose? .

It was for China, Manchukuo and Japan to federate and establish
a large co-prosperity sphere in the Orient. This was closely
connected with the theory of ISHIHARA for the complete withe
drawal of Japanese troops from China,

In other words, this plan would recognize the sovereignty
of Manchukuo, Chirna and Japan and they would deal with each
other as soveriegn and independent nations. Is that right?

Yes,

The Army generally was opposed to recognizing the separate
sovereignty of Manchukuo, and China and wanted to dominate
those countries with Japanese influence?

Yes, the military had that tendency. The military did not
like the fact that the Association or federation would make
all the policies.

What do you mean by that? What did the Army want?

The military were afraid that a body representing those three
countiries will be controlling everything rather than each of
them being a soveriegn and separate entity

Was there actually a Far Eastern Federation in existence in
those days by treaty or agreement between those three parties?

This is one of the things advocated by ISHIHARA and even in
China there was an organization that was advocating the same
thing. In Japan, there was a body which believed in it, too,
but all these were just private - not a public or govermmental
organization, ;
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Q When they talk about establishing a branch of the federation
at home, was there a federation in existence on the continent?

A No, just a branch for the movement for creating such a feder-
ation,

Q So, War Minister TOJO was very much opposed to this? Is that

rizht? 4
A Yes. 3

Q When you say it might put him in an embarrassing position, k.
why would it put TOJO in an embarrassing position for these 3
generals to start such a movement in Japan?

A Because TOJO hitherto has opposed such Far Eastern Federation
but because his subordinates were agreeing to it, it was -
putting him in a very difficult position. '

Q Why was he opposed to recognizing the sovereignty of Manchukuo '
and China and dealing with them as sovereign nations?

A He was not opposed to China and Manchukuo becoming sovereign
nations and separate entities. He was opposed to the creation
of an organ which would be separate from the three and which
would be acting independently.

Q Well, War Minister TOJO favored the continued comtination of
Menchukuo by Japan, didn't he?

A The greatest concern of TOJO was that the supreme authority
of the Emperor might be demaged or be limited by such a
federation,

Q This federation involved the creation of some sort of a central
body that was going to control the affairs of these nations }
and he was opposed to that,

A Yes. 'f

Q On March 6, Marquis, you mention talking to the Emperor about
this Far Eastern Federation and he expressed his opinion. What i
were his views?

A As written in the diary, I had a talk with the Alde-de~Camp 3
and there has been no talk between the BEmperor and the Aide-
de-Camp at all.
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You referred to the Emperor's opinions about the Far Eastern
Federation, did you not? I see, by "His Majesty", you meant
the Aide-de-Camp and I thought it was the Emperor when you
referred to "His Majesty". What was the Aide-de-Camp's opinion
about the Far Eastern Federation?

I 3o not know. I have no accurate recollection of the Aide-
de-Camp's opinion.

What was this Federation supposed to accomplish? What was
the purpose of having this Federation? The central organiza-
tion of the Federation was going to do what?

This central organization of China, Manchuria and Japan was
vigorously opposed by Jepanese elements although it was greatly
supported by many of the elements in China. This was advocated
by ISHIHARA and was not an actual fact.

What was the purpose of the organization? What was the Govern-
ment body going to do? -

I do not know of any program or plan offered by this organization
but I believe that ISHIHARA thought to use this instrument for
solving the China problem.

Who was Mr. OGAWA you mention in your diary?

He is an old experienced politician, He has been very active
in China affairs.

What was it he told you with reference to handling or man-
ipulating the central govermment of China?

A group of persons that were active in China affairs advocated
direct negotiations with Chiang Kai Shek regime for settlement
of the China problem. Persons like KAYANO was active in Hong-
kong to obtain that end. Hongkong at that time was a rendez-

vous of various persons of various nationals and factions.

On March 12, Foreign Minister MATSU(KA left for Germany.
In your diary on March 7, you write about his having conferred
with the Pmperor before leaving. What instructions was
MATSUCKA given by the Emperor or the Government with reference

to his trip to Germany?
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A He had no orders whatsocever fram the Emperor. He only had
orders fram the Govermment,

Q What instructions did he receive from the Government?
A I do not know.

Q Didn't the Govermment have some general policy that it
wanted MATSUCKA to carry out while he was in Germany?

A I do not know because I did not hear anything about it. If
it was something important or significant, I would have heard
samething about it from the Prime Minister but because I
didn't, I don't think it was important. Because the public
sentiment or outside sentiment was against it, I don*t believe
that MATSUCKA took along any concrete instructions with him,

Q You don't think he was instructed to solicit financial or
military aid from Germany in fighting the war with China?®

A I did not hear anything about it, Under the Japanese system,
the Ammy would not allow any meddling by the Foreign Minister
‘into military matters.

Q If there was any military support to be obtained from Germany,
that would be a matter of direct negotiation between the Army
and Germany?

A I believe that is so.

Q What branch or division of the Army would normally conduct
such negotiations with another power?

Generally, a military attache., At this time, General YAMASHITA

2 was in Germany.

Q You mean a military attache in the Foreign 0ffice?

A He was a special attache dispatched there. |

Q And would he be selected and sent by the Chief of Staff?

A He was dispatched by the War Minister. I do not know if his

position was with the Chief of Staff or Staff officers?,

Q In 1941, the early part of 1941, War Minister TOJO had dis-
patched YAMASHITA to Germany to exchange views and ideas on
military matters?
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I do not know what his objective was but he was nevertheless
dispatched there.

When did he go, approximately?

He was dispatched there before MATSU(KA was sent and then he
came back after MATSUCKA came back, '

Well, he was there on official business for the War Ministry,
was he not? He wasn't just vacationing there?

NO' NOI'
Didn't you ever learn what the purpose of his visit was?
No, I did not hear anything about it,

Is it true there was very close cooperation between the military
forces of Germany and Japan in those days?

I do not know how close contact they had but because of the
military pact, I believe they were having some close connections.

Were there some secret clauses to the Tripartite Pact which
are not discussed in the main part of the agreement?

I did not hear anything about it.

On March 13, you indicate the Emperor discussed with you the
one-sided movement of the Armmy. What did he say?

I believe that the PEmperor was greatly concerned about the
military acting arbitrarily and doing everything as it pleased.

Do you recall what particular arbitrary activities the Emperor
had in mind?

I have no recollection as to that particular instance.

The Emperor felt the Army was taking foreign policy into its
own hands and resented that fact?

Yes, such occasions had come to light from time to time,

On March 1), when you talked to the Alde-de-Camp concerning
Germany, England and the Balkans, do you remember what he had
to say?

I have no accurate recollection on that.
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Q “ What did you discuss with War Minister TOJO on March 179
A I have no recollection.

Q Do you recall what his attitude or plans were about that time
with reference to China?

A TOJO did not speak to me of any such large problems. Re only
talked with me about personnel matters.

Q Why was 1t he never discussed policy questions with you when
other such individuals often did?

A Because TOJO is very clear-cut on such a matter and he would
not get himself involved on political matters with me.

Q You mean he didn't care to discuss the pros and cons of a
question? His mind was always made up and he wouldn't seek
advice,

A Even though he does want to talk on political matters with
me, he usually talked upon it briefly and discontinued it.
It is his nature,

Q In his brief way, what did he express to you as to his attitude
toward the China Incident in those days?

A He was always talking about settling the China incident as
quickly as possible but he never said anything as to how to
do iti

Q Did he have anything to say about the United State's position?

A At this time, the Japanese-A merican negotiation wasn't being
conducted and America was not in the picture at this time.

Q (March 23) What were Mr. TOYODA's views towards China and the
South Pacific?

A TOYODA is Vice Minister of the Navy and he is a pacifist and
he was greatly concerned about the situation,

Q (March 25) I notice in the negotiation of the settlement of the
border dispute in French Indo-China that it was agreed that a
Japanese subject be made chairman of one of the prominent come
mittees, What was this committee supposed to do and why was a
Japanese subject picked for that position?
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It means that a Japanese as a member of the G&mittea
investigating the dispute was agreed upon by French Indo-
China and Thailand?

That was a matter of investigation, I see.

And this was a coomittee that was to determine the boundary
between the two countries,

In connection with the negotiation of this dispute, Japan
started to negotiate with French Ind-China for econamic and
camercial rights in French Indo-China, didn't she?

Yes, as written later on, it wanted to negotiate on tha.
camercial, trade and economic matters.

And that was in order to obtain supplies with which to carry
on the war with China¢?

Also to obtain rice in order to feed the Japanese population.

On M arch 27 you refer to a conversation with War Minister T0J0O
concerning the Imperial Rule Assistance Association. What did
he have to say about that?

I believe it was the reshuffling of the Imperial Rule Assiste
ance Association. I have no complete recollection as to
other matters and because the Prime Minister also spoke to
me of the same thing, I believe it was same important per-
sonnel reshuffling, :

On April 3, Prince KONOYE asked you to agree to the appoint-
ment of TOYODA as Minister of Commerce and SUZUKY as President
of the Planning Board. Why did he ask your consent. Was
that required before those appointments could be made?

KONOYE usually obtained my opinion on personnel matters because
he was a good friend of mine and for that reason, he phone me up,

It wasn't a legal requirement that you consent to such an
appointment?

No.

Why were these changes made in the Commerce Ministry and the
Planning Board at that particular time?
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Who was the Minister of Commerce and Industry?

SAKONJI, I believe,

I believe that KOBAYASHI was the Minister of Commerce and in-
dustry. I believe that KOBAYASHI was having trouble with his
Vice Minister KISHI and because of that, he was in a difficult
position and KOBAYASHI was also having difficulties in the Diet,

Generally speaking, what were his troubles. What were they about?

His trouble was purely personal. I believe he wanted to resign
because of those personal troubles.

This General SUZUKI that was appointed to the Planning Board
was the same SUZUKI that was a Lt. Colonel back in the Kwantung

days?
Yes.

The Planning Board was a very important board during war time,
was it not? What are its functions, generally?

It was an organization which pools all the resources and then
allocates it to various places, like to the civilian use or
for military uses and things like that.

Did it ded with econamic matters, mostly?

Yes, only in material things.

Did it have control over the supplies that were reguired by
the military?

It is a place which determines how much to allocate to the
military and how much to civilians.

In other words, if the military needed supplies to carry on

a particular campaign in a war, they would have to be awarded
the supplies by the Planning Board. Is that right?

Yes,

Was the military represented directly on the Planning Board?

Yes, the Army and the Navy were represented there,
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How large a Board is the Planning RBoard ,approximately? 1Is
it large in number or is it a small group?

It is quite large.
By that you mean as many as one hindred?

There are about four or five bureaus in 'that Roard so I do
not know how many persons there are.

Well, it is really a board in the Cebinet, is it not? Doesn't
it £it into the Cabinet part of your govermmental structure?

Tt is attached to the Cabinet and ‘not a part of the Cabinet.
Because SUZUKI was a Minister of State, he would be a part of

the Cabinet but the organ itself, the Cabinet Planning Board,
is not a part of the Cabinet.

To whom is the President of the Planning Baoard responsible,
the Cabinet, or the Military, or the Emperor?

Tt is responsible to the Cabinet.
Tt makes reports to the Cabinet, does ite

Yes.

Is its personnel appointed by the Premier or scme Cabinet
member, or is the Board appointed by the Emperor himself?

Under sponsorship of the Prime Minister, he is appointed by
the Emperore.

That is the President of the Planning Board?

Yes.

The lesser personnel of the Planning Board is appointed by whom?

The lesser board members are appointed by the Prime Minister.

Tn order to appoint one President of the Planning Board, is
it necessary first to obtain the consent of the War Minister

and the Navy Minister?
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Because the relationship is very deep and close, both -
parties' agreement is required but it is not necessary !
under law, .

As a practical matter, because of the dissension it might
cause in the Government, even so much as to cause the fall
of the Cabinet, it is practically required to get the consent
of these two ministers?

Yes, in order to avoid friction,

SO, General SUZUKI met with the approval of the War and Navy
Minister in order to be appointed head of the Planning Board?

Yes,

Why was it Chief of Staff FUSHIMI tendered his resignation
about that time,

Prince FUSHIMI resigned because of a poor heart.
And he was succeeded by Admiral NAGANO?

Yes. .

Was Admiral NAGANO a member of the Rightist group?
No, he is not a Rightist. .

What were his views with reference to the China situation
and the southern problem?

Admiral NAGANO held the seame opinion generally held by the Navy
in that he desired to conclude the China incident as quickly
as mﬂaiblﬂt

Was he interested in taking whatever steps were necessary to
obtain oil and other supplies in the South Pacific?

Yes, as a member of the Navy, he was very eager to‘robta:ln oil,
Did be advocate the use of force to obtain it, if necessary?
No, there wasn't any such feeling at this time,

When did that feeling first evidence itself in the Navy? At
least when was it with reference to the time America placed

the embargo on exports to Japan, that you first sensed an
attitude on thepart of the Navy to move into the southern

Pacific to get 0il? In relation to that date, when was it?
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A Yes, it was interested in obtaining oil very eagerly upon
the embargo of oil by America and at this time, the Japanese-
American conference or negotiations were not ccnducted, so
at this time the Navy was interested in solving that matter
by negotiating with America. The Navy favored the settlement
of the China incident and after that they wanted to settle
the oil problem with America,

Q My question was when was it the Navy first started advocating
getting oil in the South Pacific by force of arms, if necessary.

A T believe it was after the Japanese-American negotiaticns
became graver and graver,

Q In other words, in the early part of 1941, the Navy desired
0il in the South Pacific but it didn't advocate the use of
| militery force to get it. But after the United States placed
y an embargo upon its oil to Japan and iis negotiations by way
! of settlement did not prove satisfactory to them, the Navy
came forth with the plan to take oil by military force. 1Is

that right?

A But even in October, when the KONOYE Cabinet fell and the
Japanese-American negotiations became very difficult, the
Navy still was advocating that negotiations be carried on
and something definite be done and then it started saying
it would be bad to negotiate for about two or three months

and then go to war.

Q By October 1941, even though the Navy still mighi have wanted
f to negotiate the matter, it already had definite plans of going
into the South Pacific by force of arms if negotiations didn't

prove successful, didn't it?

A But the younger Navy officers; that is, the core of the Navy
was leaning toward war and the directing body of the Navy
was not able to quell that feeling to keep it in check. So,
it took on the attitude ater on, to refer all the matters

in the hands of the Govermment,

Q The true situation is that Japan was fighting a war in China
and needed oil in order to continue fighting and when the
United States placed its embargo, the Navy adopted the pro-
gram of trying to get oil by negotiation but made plans to
get it by force if negotiations failed. Is that true?

A Yese.

Q Who was Mr. KOREMATSU?
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He was my private secretary at one time.

And what did he report with reference to conditions in French
Tndo-China?

I haven't much recollection there because KOREMATSU was not
only one time in Thailand. He talked to me about the situation
there and he didn't give me anything concrete.,

What did he have to say about the newly acquired bases Japan
had in French Indo-China%?

I have no accurate recollection.

On April 13, what was it that took place with reference to
granting absolute authority to MATSUCOKA in his dealings with
Russia?

Because MATSUCKA said that on his return from Germany, he
stopped by Moscow and obtained a none-aggression pact with
Russia and he requested the status of an Ambassadcr plenipo-
tentiary in that matter,

And what was it the policy of the Government that MATSUCKA
should accomplish in Russia?

It had the policy of letting MATSUCKA conclude a non-aggression
pact with Russia,

Were the military people in favor of negotiating such a pact
at that time?

Yes,

Was the Government in accord with that without dissent of
any consequence?

No, there was no dissenting opinion.

The truth of the matter is, is it not, the military desired
a neutrality pact with Russia in order that they might have
a freer hand in the South to get these supplies for fighting
in China? Is that right?

No, at that time, the military was not desiring to attack
Russia,




Q Well, since there was a plan, at least on the part of MATSUCKA
and TOJO, and maybe socme others, to expand in the South Pacific,

the neutrality of Russia Was necessary in order for Japan to
80 move, wasn't it9

A Yes,

Q Wasn't that the real reason for wanting Russia to be neutral

. | at that particular time so Japan would have a free hand to
4 ' move into the South Pacific?

-~ _' A Even at the time that the pact with Germany and Italy had been
| - made, feeling was strong. Japan thought that Russia should
be included in that pact, too, and when the militery alliance
was made, this matter was dealt upon with Germany,

Q What was the German attitude with reference to bringing Russia
into the pact?

A Germany was agreeable to that but the German Foreign Minister
said that it should be made into a separate pact and not be
included in the Tripartite Pact. :,:1: seems for that reason,
Germany invited Molotov over and negotiated with him in Berlin

but finally there were no agreement of views and it did not
materialize,

Q Well, in the spring of 1941, the Japanese Government had
information that Germany would likely attack Russia in the
near future. Isn't that righte

A Yes, fear arose in Japan that after the collapse of the German-
Russian negotiations, there would be an attack upon Russia,

Q And it was at that time that Japan sought and did enter into
& neutrality pact with Russia?

A Yes, Japan would not be able to make close contact with Germany
unless she first obtained friendly relations with Soviet Russia,

Q Why wouldn't she be able to do so?

A Because of comnication matters and things like that,

Q Well, Japan was very much interested in those days of keep-
ing out of war with Russia, was she not?




A Yes, Japan was trying its utmost to avoid war with Russia,

Q Why did she want to keep out of war with Russia at that par-
ticular time, having in mind there were many elements in Japan
that wanted to attack Russia and when Germany attacked Russia,
it might be a logical time for Japan to attack Russia?

A Because war with Russia waild need to be raised on a long
front along the Manchurian-Soviet border and Japan was totally
unprepared for that sort of a campaign. After the Manchurian
incident, Japan was more concerned about Russia attacking
Japan than Japan attacking Russia; therefore, the Army was
greatly agreeable to a conclusion of a non~aggression pact
with Ruﬂﬂiao

portant that Japan acquire resources in the South Pacifie,
did it not? ‘

Q And what did the other faction of the Armmy advocate as to
Japan's military policy; those that were opposed to attacke
ing Russia simultaneously with Russia? VWhat did they consider
the best policy for Japan to follow?

A Because Rugsia weas being attacked by Germany, same sections
of the military was of the opinion that Russia would collapse
early and because the threat from the North was campletely
dissipated, opinion became strong for a move toward the South,

| Q In other words, the attack of Germany on Russia and the nee
' gotiation of the neutrelity pact with Russia eliminated any
threat of Russian activities in the Far East, didn't it?

A Yes,

Q And that gave the expansionist group in the Army an opportunity
to put over its program of moving to the South., Is that correct?

A Yes, one section had that sort of belief,




Was there any effort, to your Knowledge, in those days, on
the part of Germany, through its Foreign Minister Ribbentrop,
to induce Japan to attack Russia?

Germany even went to the extent that she thought that she
would be able to defeat Russia within two or three months

and she gave the impression that Japan's participation was
not desired,

Did Germany through Ribbentrop or any other ot its officials
try in those days to induce Japan to attack Great Britain
in the Far East, such as Hongkong and Singapore?

I never heard any such stories directly,

MATSUCKA was one that favored the attack of the British in
Hongkong and Singapore, was he not?

That isn't clear to me.

On April 15, you mention having a talk with the Aide~de-Ceamp
concerning Chungking. Do you remember what that conversation
was about?

I just heard the information that the military and all sorts
of persons were negotiating or trying Yo negotiate with/Chung-
king Government, the

What was the gist of the telegram received fram Ambassador
NOMURA who was in Washington at that time about which you
write in your diary on April 189

Ambassador NOMURA reéquested a proposal by the Japanese Govern-
ment which would take on the over-all problem of the Pacific
and which would settle the problems there and he tried to

obtain agreement which would solve the over-all problem of the
Pacific,
What sort o instructions was he seeking from Tokyo?

With his proposal, he thought that the Conference at Washington
would be progressed,
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VWas he seeking authority to agree to holding a conference
to negotiate the Far Eastern question?

He thought to go right on with the negotiation, not openly
but in secret.

These were negotiations with reference to China and the
situation in China,

-—

Yes, and also the Pacific problems,

On April 19, you mention Ambassador KURUSU. Was he an ame
bassador to the United States in those days?

No, he just returned from Germany.
Had he been Ambassador to Germany at that time?

He was Ambassador to Germny but he was replaced by Ambassador
OSHIMA on his return.,

What report did he make to the Emperor on his return from
Germany?

His newé did not go beyond that of a normal German relationship.

Did he have anything of signifiance to report as to what was
going on in Germany or what Germany desired of Japan?

I don't believe there was such concrete matters at that time,
This report was very formal and because I did not make any
notations, I do not believe there was anything of significance,

What type of instructions did Admiral NOMURA desire when he
sent this cable to Tokyo? What was he seeking to obtain by way
of instructions? :

Because the American side had made proposals and has made a cone
crete plan, NOMURA wanted the Japanese Government to make the
same proposals. Also, he wanted to know if he could go on

with the conference on the American proposals.
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Q What sort of a reply was sent to NOMURA.by Japan in answer
to his request for instructions?

A At this time, M ATSU(KA was absent. It was decided that
the liaison conference be opened upon MATSUGKA's return and
at that time, the instruction be given,

Q MATSUKA returned the latter part of April, April 22, to
be exact. Was such a liaison conference held upon his return¢ R

A Immediately that night upon MATSICKA'S return, the liaison
conference was held but MATSI(KA was very unfavorable toward |
the negotiations and so it didn't gain any results. The Prime 3
Minister, the War Minister and everybody was highly willing |
to go on with the negotiation even though it was late in the
night but MATSUKA was very unfavorable toward it and he left
early.

B Q MATSUCKA, in those days, was personally very much opposed
| to any negotiation with the United States. Iz that correct?

" A He is not entirely opposed to any negotiation with America
! but he just disliked this story. That is samething that I |
| cannot understand about MATSUCKA.,

Q Was he so powerful that he was able to dominate the situation
even though the War Minister and other prominent ministers
favored the negotiation?

A It was because he was the Foreign Minister,

Q Didn't the War Minister have a good deal to say about
what the foreign policy of Japan was in those days?

A MATSUCKA was very powerful in that respect. Even in the
negotiations with Chungking, he thought he would taeke care
of that matter himself, so he was very powerful in diploe
matic matters. I believe he had the intention of taking
diplomatic powers away from the Army.

Q On April 19, when you were discussing these negotiations
with the United States concerning the China situation with
Prince KONOYE, you made this statement in effect; "We must
bend every effort to keep our faith with the Axis powers,
and at the same time, we must realize the establishment of
a new order of the Asiatic co-prosperity sphere, which is
our fixed national policy.* What did you mean by that?
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Ever since the lst KONOYE Cabinet, the Japanese policy was
defined as the establishment of the China, Manchuria and
Japanese federation Co-prosperity sphere and at the same time
To maintain faith of the Axis powers and I thought this ex-
planation of KONOYE would be a very good thing to do if it
can be done at all,

You say that ever since the 1st KONOYE Cabinet, Japan had
adopted as its national policy this Greater East Asia coe
prosperity sphere. Is that right?

Yes,

What did that involve? What were the purposes of this PIO~
gram - this Greater East Asia Co=prosperity sphere? What
was its program¢?

The three basic principles uttered by Prince KONOYE became
a basis of that.

What were they?

The three basic principles was (1) friendly relations with
neighboring countries; (2) economic cooperation of China,
Manchuria and Japan; and (3) the anti-comintern pact,

Didn't this new order of co-prosperity in Greater East
Asia-involve a more or less Eastern Monroe Doctrine, to the
effect that Japan would not tolerate any interference in
Eastern Asia affairs by outsiders, such as England and the
United States? |

There were many statement made in those days with reference
to the so-called East Asia Monroe Doctrine, was there not
and that Japan wanted no interference in East Asia from oute-

side poweras?

There were such argument among certain people but the Govern-

ment never adopted such a policy.

The national policy that KONOYE advocated involved the domina-

tion of East Asia by Japan, did it not?




No, KONOYE did not hold such a view,

Who was it in the Japanese Government that wanted any ine
fluence on the part of the United States or Great Britain
removed from Asia?

The Government never took on such a policy. Same sections
of the military and the civilians, however, did have such

a policy.

Who in the military at this period we are talking about
advocated such a policy?

I have no accurate recollection as to who had such a policy?
Didn't War Minister TOJO have such a policy?

- \
Even T0OJO as a member of the Government undoubtedly did not

agree to such a policy although there are various manifesta-
tions of such a sentiment emongz certain factions of the Army.

Where were they emphasized and by whom?
The names of the persons are not clear to me.

You don't mean to say that War Minister TOJO wasn't opposed
to the United States and Britian giving aid to China?®

He was opposed to aid to China by Britain and America.

What was it that President Roosevelt had said that the Emperor
had referred to in your conversation with him on April 219

The report of NOMURA was that the American President was very
agreeable and that there is great hope of the matter being
properly disposed of.

What did he have to say with reference to the Tripartite Pact
on that occasion?

Because Japan was leaning toward Germany and at this time,
Anerica was trying to pull Japan toward her, the BEmperor was
of the opinion that any friendship with America should be
highly desirable, And the Emperor was not so highly pleased
with alliance of Germany and Italy.

What objection did he have to that alliance?
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A The Emperor was greatly worried about Japan's alliance
with Germany and Italy would lead to war with America
and Britain, and about that great concern he inguired
of Prime Minister EONOYE and Foreign Minister MATSUCKA
replied that the alliance with the Axis power was entered

into in order to prevent American participation in the war
and gavethat sort of an excuse,

Q Participation in what ware? 9

A Participation in a world war or Pacific war, The nego-

tiations conducted between Germany and Italy in those
matters as well as the negotiations with America are all
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when he returned on the 22nd? You make a note of that in
your diary. What did he have to say about the affairs in

Q Didn't the Emperor ask him any questions about the German
relationship?

Q You discussed the matter at some length then with the Emperorxr

on the 23rd? What was your conversation with the Emperor on
that occassion?
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What significance did you attach to the fact that he did
not say anything about Germany? What did that indicate to
you and the Emperor?

So the Emperor thought there wasn't hardly any significant
talks done with German and he felt that undoubtedly MATSUOKA
Just went out there for a courtesy visit.

What did MATSUCKA actually accomplish on his trip to Europe
other than just negotiating this neutrality pact with Russia?

I believe there wasn't anything done other than the conclusion

of the neutrality pact with Russia and we thought this was

true because it was reported that Germany was greatly disappointed
because MATSUCKA did not have any concrete plan with them.

What was Germany expecting so as to cause Germany to be
disappointed?

The Germans expected MATSU(KA to bring along a more concrete
plan of Japan but because Japan did not have such a plan,

they were disappointed,

You think that Germany was expacting a more definite plan on
the part of Japan as to what it was going to do in the Far
East with reference to the South Pacific and China, etc.

I believe so. But the Japanese Army and Navy did not have
any such plan and they were not yet in the stage where they
would draw up any such plan,

fihen did the plans of the Army and Navy start to take form
if they weren't in existence in April and May of 19/19%

They were highly hopeful of the Japanese-American negotiation
and they did not have any plan for battle in the South.

What month did you say that those plans for activities in
the South took form?

Right after words came that the Japanese-American negotiations

wasn't going along amoothly and simply that the younger officers
in the Staff Headquarters began to take on the matter of
plans toward the southern regions.

What month would you say that was in in 1941¢?

I believe it was probably around July.
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Q On May 1 you mentioned that a liaison conference was called

for the following Saturday. Do you know what the purpose
of that liaison conference was?

A I believe that liaison conference determined the instruction
to NOMURA. |

Q Is that the case when due to the efforts of MATSUCKA, Japan
refused to authorize negotiations by NOMURA?

A As a result of this conference, it was decided that the ne-
gotiation would be continued. Ever since MATSU(KA returned fram
Burope, he postponed the reply for about two weeks, This
fact obstructed the settlement of the problems greatly,

Q What reply finally was sent to NOMURA?

A I believe that the basis of negotiation had been determined
there., The details are not known to me,

Q Was it concluded at this liaison conference that negotiations
would go forward? '

A Yes,

Q Where are these liaison conferences held - at Imperial Head-
quarters?

A Yes.

Q Is that within the Palace grounds? Where are they held
physically - the place?

A The liaison conferences are usually held in the official resi-
dence of the Prime Minister.

A It is located between the Diet and the Palace.

Q There is a separate biuilding for Imperial General Headquarters,

A It is the same building with the Imperial General Headquarters
Army section and the Navy Staff headquarters.

Q Are all located in one building?
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A The Navy and Army are separated. The military section of
the Imperial General Headquarters and Staff Headquarters
are in the same building., Then, the Navy General Staff

and the Navy section of Imperial General Beadquarters are
in another building,

Q So there was no one central building in which General
Headquarters met regularly? Is that right?

A Yes

Q They met separately and came together for liaison conferences?
Is that right?

A And finally gathered in a room within the Palace occasionally.

'. Q In the summer of 1941, did Imperial General Headquarters meet
| in the Palxe Grounds?

| A Yes, it was established in the Palace, too but the two separate
" sections of the Army and Navy existed long befare.

Q They had their own separate sections and came together on

occasions but by the summer of 1941 they set up the Imperial
General Headquarters in an office in the Palace grounds?

A Yes,

Q And were liaison conferences held there quite often or were
they normally held in the Palace residence?

A It was frequently held in the Palace. In the latter part,
it was more frequently held in the Palace.

Q Would they be in the presence of the Emperor, necessarily?

No, the Emperor never came out,.

Where would the records of these liaison conferences be kept?
The matters, ofders or decisions?

A 1 believe it is kept by the Imperial General Headquarters
and the Cabinet.

And would they be on file in this particular building in the
Palace grounds with the Imperial General Headquarters office?
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As far as the Palace is concerned, they just let us use the
roan and no documents are allowed to be kept there, so they
are taken along.

Where would they be taken to?

I believe that the Imperial General Headquarters military sec-
tion and the Navy sections or the Cabinet has it.

Were those buildings destroyed? At least, those Imperial
General Headquarters of the Army and Navy were.

Later on, the Imperial General Headquarters moved to another
place called Ushigome and that place was not burned.

You think the records should be there if they haven't been moved?

I do not know.

Where would the cabinet records of these liaison conferences’ -
be kept in the Diet building?

I believe it is kept in the document section of the Cabinet.
In the Diet Building?

No.

What building is the document section of the Cabinet located?

I do not know where it is kept. Maybe, the Chief Secretary
knows it.

Did any of the Ministers in the Cabinet have offices in the
Diet building or were they located in other buildings?

No officials are in the Diet Building.

I notice between May 3 and May 8 you have several entries
in your diary concerning conferenc es with Foreign Minister
MATSUCKA and the Emperor with reference to instructing
NOMURA, What did the BEmperor tell MATSIOKA with reference
to the answer to be given to NOMURA?

I do not know accurately what was said but I believe that the
Emperor said to do the utmost so that NOMURA would be able to
continue negotiations with America.
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Q Was MATSUCKA actively opposing the continuation of these
negotiations?

A Actually or on the surface, MATSUMXKA did not oppose the carrye-
ing on of negotiations,

Q I thought you said earlier today that MATSUXKA was not sympa-
thetic with trying to negotiate the differences between Japan
and the United States; that he even left one of the liaison

! conferences early because he was not interested in trying to

A work out some of the instructions?

A During those two weeks which he postponed it, the Army and the
Navy went up to him and beseeched him and as a result his feel-

ing changed.

Q In other words, at the outset, when this note was received fram -

i NQMURA, MATSUCKA didn't want to have anything to do with ne- 3 !
', gotiations in the United States but he was finally prevailed
| upon to give NOMURA authority. Is that correct? 4 +
|

|

|

\
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Q You say that the Army and the Navy talked him into ¢hanging
his mind?

A I heard that the Bureau of Military Affairs in the Army pre-
| vailed upon him vigorously and in America, Colonel IWAKARO,
' the Military Attache was very active for the negotiation,

Q In other words, it is your opinion that in these days, the
Japanese Govermment and also the Army and Navy honestly de-
sired to avoid war with the United States. What they were
most concerned with was to retain what had been accampl ished |
in China and wented to settle the China incident without a2
withdrawing troops from China, if they could accomplish that [
without interference on the United States. They didn't i
want to have any trouble with the United States? '

A Yes,

Q Can we say fairly that although the military had a plan or
program to expand in Manchuria and to establish influence
in China, it didn't have any over-all plan to attack the
United States in those days, It merely wanted no interfer-
ence from the United States in its operations on the continent.
Is that a fair statement? s
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A Yes, generally so,

Q The war between Japan and the United States, in your opinion,
came about through a clash of the foreign policy between
Japan and the United States with reference to China?

A Yes.

Q In the last of your diary, on May 9, you refer to .a talk
with War Minister TOJO, at which time he furnished you ine
formation regarding the United States and Germany. What did
he have to say on that occasion?

A I believe that the report from the Military Attache was heard
and especially Colonel IWANURO's report.
K

Q What did he have to say? What did he have to say about the |
United States and Germany when T0J0O talked to you on that |
occasion?

A Colonel IW.A;U‘RO'a report as Military Attache in Germany was
that he was highly in favor of negotiation and that the report
from the Military Attache in Germany was that Germany is about
to use strong pressure upon Russia,

Q On May 10, you refer to negotiations between MATSUKA and
the German Ambassador OIPTQ. What did these negotiations ine
volve and what were MATSUCKA and OTTO trying to negotiate?

A I have no accurate recollection, Because of the military
alliance, I believe he went out there to make contact.

Q What did he want to contact OTTO about with reference to
Germany?

A I believe MATSUCKA talked on the matter because of Japan's
relation in regard to the military alliance, _

Q On May l1ll, do you recall what Mr., KOBAYASHI had to say about
Dutch Indo-China?

A He was my friend and he farmed in the Celebes Islands and he
informed me of the situation there in the Netherlands Indies.

Q What did he have to say about it?

A I heard him say that the relationship between the Japanese
nationals in the Dutch East Indies and the people there had
become very acute and grave and that the Japanese nationals
there wanted the Government to do something about it and to
ease the situation,
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What was the dispute between the Japanese nationals and
the local people? What was their difficulty about?
What were they having trouble about?

Tt was due to the circumstances and the situation prevalent
at that time in which anti-Japanese sentiment was manifested
and made Japanese living there rather difficult and unbearable,

Isn't it true that the Japanese Army expansionist group de-
sired to stir up difficulty in Dutch Indo-China in order that
the military might have an excuse to move in and take possession
and control? |

I didn't hear of such things at this time.

You don't think the military or the Army were trying to create
incidents in order to have an excuse to move in like you said
took place in Manchuria in those days?

I do not believe that was contemplated because there was no
troops stationed there as in the case of Manchuria and China
and in order to carry on such a thing out, it requires agree-
ment and the use of the Navye

What, as of the first of June 1941, was the status of the ne=-
gotiations between Japan and the United States according to
your recollection? What was the issue between them?  How
far apart were they and what did Japan insist upon and what
did the United States insist upon, according to your recol=
lection as of June 1941, I just use that as an arbitrary
date,

At this time, there were numerous transfer of materials and
negotiations and replies and things like that. There were
negotiations being conducted back and forth.

What was the issue and what was Japan insisting upon and what
was the stand of the United States at that time? :

I believe there were problems of withdrawal of Japanese troops
from China or about the rights in the southern regions and the
scope of the problems; that is, whether to include the entire

Pacific area or just a section of that area.

Japan insisted upon keeping her troops in China in order to
save face? That was her position was it not?
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But Japan was agreeable to withdrawing her troops gradually.

Did she so advise the United States in these negotiations
that she would withdraw her troops gradually?

I believe such advice and information had been given to the
United States. The details of that is given in the memoirs

written by Prince KONOYE,

Yes, I have read that, What was MATSUCKA'S attitude with
reference to the withdrawal of troops from China%

MATSUKA did not oppose it as long as Jepan did not lose face,.
Was 1t possible to withdraw troops from China and not lose face?

If Japan was able on its own initiative to withdraw troops
from China, through agreement with China, she considered that
the best way e

She didn't want to have to withdraw troops under pressure
from outside influence, Is that the feeling she had? She
wanted to do it voluntarily and notbecause the United States
or Britain wanted her to do so?

Japan thought it would be best that America act as a mediator
and would make it appear that Japan on its own initiative
would withdraw its troops.

And that is what she was seeking in her negotiations with
America?

Yes

On June 3, you refer to the calling of the liaison conference
to discuss the Southern Penetration Policy. By that time, had
it became a national policy of the Japanese Government that
Japan should move into the Southern Pacific?

I believe that it was a story relative to the fact that an
agreement had been reached with Thailand and French Indow
China and it does not involve any foreful incursion into the
Southern region?

You don't think there was any liaison conference held on that
occasion or on or about that time when the dbvernment discussed
taking active measures to move into the South Pacific?
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Q When was it that the Japenese troops were first landed into
French Indo-~China?

A I have no recollection as to what date.

Q Wasn't it about this time or a little later in 1941 that the ]
troops were landed? -

A I believe it was a little later than that.

Q What were the circumstances that caused Japan to land these
troops in French Indo~China? Why was that found necessary
to send a large body of troops into French Indo-China?

A I believe that it was to attack China fram the South.

Q "And did Japan have any treaty arrangements with French Ipdoe
China authorizing her to land troops there? $

A Japan landed troops there after a peaceful negotiation and
agreement .

Q And was that agreement entered into between Japan and the
Vidy Government?

| A We may have had an agreement on the part of the V:I.chy Government "
- but actually it was through direct negotiation with the Governe-
ment of French Indo-China,

Q On what theory was it agreed that Japan should be able to
land troops in French Indo-China. Was that agreed upon by
French Indo-China in order that Japan might attack China
from the South?

A I don't believe that it was for such a conclusive reason but .'j
it is-not clear to me, |

Q Why do you think that French Indo-China was willing to have
Japan land troops on her soil%®

A I believe they had no other alternati've.

Q By that, do you mean French Indo-China?

A Yes.
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Q In other words, great pressure was put on French Indo-China
to force them to sign this treaty also? Tell me what you
know about how this treaty was negotiated, how it came about
and how the pressure was put on.

A L do not know anything about how this negotiation was done |
but the Foreign Minister probably knows everything about it. "

Q Certainly, the French Indo-China people were not interested
in inviting Japan to come in and occupy their country, were
they? Do you have any knowledge or information that they
were? '

A I never heard anything about the situetion then., I do rememe
ber, however, that the matter progressed very smoothly withou
4 any hitch, '

Q Bow many troops were landed in French Indo-China? Do you o
have any idea? Few or many?

I have no recollection as to what size force was landed there.
1t was a sizeable force, was it not?

I believe it was just about one division.

o > o >

On June 16, you refer to a visit fram Dr. HIROSE with refer-
ence to the population problem., What was that problem at
that particular time and what did you discuss?

A HIROSE is a medical doctor and he is highly interested in popu-
lation problems and from him I heard academic view-points on
this population problem,

Q What was the population problem confronting Japan in those
days?

A He said that because Japan is deeply involved in war, that
there is danger that her population would be decreasing cone
stantly and he said that the population would have to be in-
creased on and on,

Q On that same date, you mention a conference between the Aide-
de-Camp and yourself with reference to the pending occupation
of French indo-China. Do you recall what was discussed between
you and he concerning the occupation of French Indo-China?
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There were stories about the proposal for occupation but

that the Foreign Minister opposed it and I think that there
is a report concerning that.,

Yourentry on June 17 was with reference to your report to

the Emperor on the proposal of Foreign Minister MATSUGKA.
Why did he oppose the occupation of French Indo=-China?
What did he have to say on that subject?

Because in agreement previously reached by French Indo~China,
no mention was made whatsoever of the stationing of troops

and he opposed it on the ground that it would gain distrust
and loss of confidence.

You mean by that, that Japan was planning to move troops into

French Indo-China without agreement on the part of French
Indo-~China?

end without having any such agreements would cause distrust,
80 the Foreign Minister opposed it.

In other words, it was the plan of the Government that Japan
should lend troops in French Indo-China whether they had any
agreement with that country or not and that plan, MATSUKA
opposed. He favored negotiating the right to land troops
rather than just landing them by force. Is that right?

Consequently, on the 18th day, the Foreign Minister dispatched
an order for direct negotiation with the Vichy Govermment,

Who was it in the Japanese Govermment that was advocating

the landing of troops without agreement on the part of French
Indo-China by force of arms®

The Army,

And who, in the Army, was outstanding in advocating such
forceable entry into French Indo-China territory?e

Those persons connected with the operation in the General
Staff Headquarters,

Was War Minister TOJO in favor of such an operation®

I believe that TOJO had approved it in having it passed through
the liaison conference,
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Tn other words, the military people, including the Chiefs
of Staff, the War Minister and people in that category,
were in favor, in effect, of invading French Indo-China
without any consent on the part of that couniry and Foreign
Minister MATSUCKA was opposed to that, and in order to
justify the landing of troops sought to negotiate through
Germany with Vichy France. |

Yese.

And it was through that means with Germany, the conquerer
of France, Japan obtained consent on the part of French
Indo-China to land troops?

Yese

And because of the condition in France at that time, I take
it you feel that a great deal of pressure was brought to
obtain consent to land these troops that more or less would
not have been granted?

Yes.




A

Certificate of Interpreter
”
J

1, __EZ‘.ELF.._S?H.}:&.EE_ :
(name Rank (Serizl Number

.

being sworn on cath, statethat I truly translated the queszions
and answers given {rom fnglish to Japanese 4nd frou Japanese to
tnglish respectivaly, and tha% the above transcription of such
questions and answers, consisting of _§8_ _pages, is true and
accurate to the best of ay knowledge and belief.

Subscribed and sworn to bafore me this dey of

1946,

——— et )

. S " {Name and Rank)

\ Duly Dstailed Investigzating Officer,
International Frosecution Section, GH3;, SCaP.

. B Certificete ‘of Stenographer

I, S. M. Betar N\ ..y hereby certify that I acted
48 siencerapher «t thz ‘ntardse.tion set out[&abo and theat 1
transcribed the foregoing quest¥ons and answers, ang t het the
transcription is true and wccurat®to the best of m “novledge
and ‘belief, ’

[

Certaficate of Interrocutor.

— - T ——— —— . — B T — —

9 I, (ox) __Henry R, Sackett |,
| | XX

3

£y that on the 25th day of Fehruary ___ _,1946, personally
ad oel
&

cert.i
daipear

(]

4 bafore ae, P) UEIDOCRoVOMA® o 7 7 TR
ano esecording Lo _Lt, Xred F..Suzukawa _ . -aoierpretzr,

geve the foregoing anavers to the several guesvions set forth
therein.




